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Donations are also accepted free of service charge at all branches of CEBUANA LHUILLIER
in the Philippines.

Credit card donations may also be done online but applicable service fees will be charged.

GMAKF also accepts material donations such as rice, canned goods, noodles, food items, 
medicines, hygiene supplies, new clothes and new footwear.

The Foundation only accepts material donations (ex. canned goods, food items and medicine) 
that are expiring beyond 6 months from date of acceptance. A material receipt form is issued 
to the donor upon delivery of material donation.

For material donations from abroad, door-to-door delivery is preferred . Please indicate the 
address and name of donor on the box. A material receiving form will be issued through 
mail or e-mail.

Thank you very much!
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Dollar Savings
Account Name : GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.
Account Number : 051-21-00358-38
Swift Code : PABIPHMM

You may also donate through any of our partners below:
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Loving God, fount of goodness and compassion,
we humbly come before You to offer our praise and thanks,
for all the blessings that You have bestowed upon us.
We thank You, most especially for calling us to be men and women
of service, sending us to others, as salt and light, to flavour life
with hope and joy.

We pray that You renew us in Your love and likeness,
so that peace may always reign in our hearts.
Be our strength; please continue to energize and rejuvenate our souls.
Bless and guide us, Your people at GMA Kapuso Foundation;
grow in our hearts and make us instruments of Your love.

Teach us the best way to share Your love to the least of our brothers and sisters.
We lift up to You, our Merciful Father, the most special of Your children:
the poor and the needy, the broken and the homeless, the young,
the aged, the sick and the lonely.

Heal their bodies, heal their hearts, and heal their souls.
Lead them to Your loving embrace – to find love and refuge.
We also entrust to Your utmost care our generous donors and partners;
the companies, individuals, groups and organizations who
ceaselessly journey with us in serving others the Kapusong Totoo way. 
Keep them in Your presence, and bring joy and peace
to their generous hearts.

And as we continue to respond to the call of delivering Serbisyong
Totoo, grant our Parent-Benefactor, GMA Network, Inc.,
Your choicest blessings.

Bless its leaders and personnel with Your strength and inspiration,
so they may carry on supporting the work of the Foundation
and fulfill their mission to communicate Your love and graciousness,
all for Your glory and in the service of Your people.

AMEN.
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Towards the end of 2024, the Philippines faced a series of climate 
disasters unlike any in recent memory. In just 30 days, six powerful 
typhoons—culminating in Super Typhoon Pepito—pounded the country 
from the northernmost tip of Luzon down through the Bicol Region 
and into parts of the Visayas. This rare confluence of consecutive 
storms severely disrupted access to food, shelter, education, and care 
for over 13 million Filipinos, with the most vulnerable communities 
hit hardest. 

And yet, in those moments of crisis that brought our nation to its 
knees, what shone brightest was the kindness and solidarity of 
our people. We witnessed how our broadcasting operations worked 
in seamless coordination with our socio-civic arm in serving our 
Kapuso. When disasters struck, GMA Network and the GMA Kapuso 
Foundation moved swiftly and as one. While the Foundation brought 
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food and supplies to those most in need, our 
news teams stood with the people—not only to 
report the truth, but to give voice to survivors 
and connect them with loved ones. As donations 
poured in, volunteers worked without pause. Our 
artists manned the phone lines—because for us, 
service is not just a role, it is who we are. 

Even after the headlines fade and the floodwaters 
recede, the work of your GMA Kapuso Foundation 
continues. We remain steadfast in our mission to 
help our fellow Filipinos rise from hardship—not 
only by responding to their immediate needs, 
but by standing beside them as they rebuild. In 
carrying out our mission, we focus not only on 
what is immediate, but what is essential and 
enduring. That commitment is seen in our long-
term efforts: from constructing infrastructure, 
safe, durable learning spaces in storm-ravaged 
areas, to replacing roofs in damaged homes, and 
supporting children with cancer through access to 
life-saving treatment and blood donations. 

These efforts reflect a truth we hold deeply: that 
public service is not just a responsibility we carry—
it is in our DNA. It is our hope that through this 
work, our Kapuso may not only recover—but rise. 

None of this could have been achieved 
without you—our partners, donors, and loyal 
viewers. And none of it could have endured 
without the tireless devotion of our brave 
staff and dedicated volunteers, who serve with 
compassion and quiet strength in bringing the 
essence of Serbisyong Totoo to those who need 
it most.

On behalf of the Board of Trustees and the 
entire GMA Kapuso Foundation, I extend our 
heartfelt thanks to all of you. Indeed, great 
things happen when the work comes from 
the heart. And greater things still, when we 
do it together. 

As it is written in 2 Corinthians 9:8
“And God is able to bless you abundantly, so 
that in all things at all times, having all that 
you need, you will abound in every good work.” 

May His grace continue to abound in you and 
through you. 

Pagpalain nawa kayo ng Panginoon, at 
mabuhay kayong lahat, mga Kapuso.
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Time and again, we have seen that when compassion is paired with 
collective action, it becomes possible to respond where help 
is needed most.

With the help of our strategic partners, donors, and volunteers, the 
GMA Kapuso Foundation served a total of 436,871 individuals in 
the past year,  through its core programs in health, disaster relief, 
education, and values formation. Through our shared efforts, we 
extended support to far-flung areas—helping uplift the lives of our 
less fortunate and afflicted countrymen.

In 2024, the nation weathered overlapping disasters across the 
country: intense shear line rains that caused flooding and landslides 
in Mindanao, prolonged drought affecting farmers and their families 
in Luzon and the Visayas, volcanic unrest at Mt. Kanlaon; an oil spill 
off the coasts of Bataan and Cavite that disrupted the livelihoods of 
many; and typhoons that swept the archipelago in rapid succession. 
Through Operation Bayanihan, the Foundation wasted no time in 
delivering aid on the ground and mobilizing efforts nationwide. 
Support poured in from several groups, bringing together artists, 
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volunteers, viewers, and partners. One notable project that 
reflected this spirit was the Operation Bayanihan: Bagyong 
Kristine Telethon—an appeal for help that also served to 
mobilize greater support, with generosity flowing both 
on-air and off, with many touched by our efforts.

We did not stop at relief; we also helped communities 
rebuild. In Barangay Sumnanga, Sabtang Island, Batanes—
an area affected by Typhoon Julian—the Foundation’s 
Silong Kapuso Project provided roofing materials and 
cement to help residents restore homes that had 
sustained partial or total damage. In Barangay Balili, 
Mankayan, Benguet—where Super Typhoon Egay in 2023 
unleashed more than a month’s worth of rainfall in just 
two days and caused widespread damage—we constructed 
a Kapuso-type Building with three classrooms in 2024 
for Dagadag Elementary School, replacing its destroyed 
facility. The new structure now serves Kindergarten to 
Grade 4 pupils, offering them a safer and more resilient 
space for learning, one built to withstand strong typhoons 
and earthquakes.

Alongside efforts to rebuild, we pursued programs that 
nurtured the development and well-being of the young, 
particularly those in the most vulnerable communities. 
Through the Unang Hakbang sa Kinabukasan Project, we 
distributed 60,000 new backpacks filled with complete 
school supplies to incoming  Kindergarten and Grade 
1 pupils in geographically isolated and underserved 
areas across the country. We also implemented Linis 
Lusog Kapusong Kabataan Project in Pangasinan and 
Negros Occidental, reaching over 2,000 public elementary 
students with hygiene kits, dental care, and handwashing 
drills. Later in the year, through the Newborn Screening 
Project, we provided free screening tests and gift 
packages to infants in selected areas of Rizal, Quezon, 
and Batangas. These were complemented by health 
lectures for mothers and the distribution of meals and 
giveaways for parents—underscoring our holistic approach 
to family care and early childhood well-being.

We also supported children battling cancer through 
the Kapuso Cancer Champions, providing free 
chemotherapy medicine and blood bags. In line with 
tradition, we ended the year with Give-A-Gift: Alay 
Sa Batang Pinoy, distributing Noche Buena packs and 
toys to children in 312 public schools nationwide. 

Our Kapuso sa Kalusugan program remained a 
consistent channel for delivering medical assistance to 
underserved communities. Through Kapuso Kalusugan 
Konsulta, the Foundation provided access to free 
medical consultations, diagnostic tests, medicines, 
and surgical support. Special cases requiring extensive 
treatment were featured in the Kapusong Totoo 
segment of 24 Oras, encouraging support for patients 
with rare or complex conditions. The Kapuso sa 
Kalusugan Caravan, a roving medical mission, was 
also deployed to several  disaster-affected and remote 
areas, bringing healthcare professionals and essential 
medicines to those with limited access to care. 

While the year was marked by challenges across many 
fronts, it also demonstrated the strength of collective, 
compassionate action. There is no better image of 
collaboration than the sight of volunteers working 
alongside government agencies, LGUs, the private 
sector, and NGOs— with all offering their time, skill, 
and effort in service of others.

Maraming salamat sa inyong patuloy na pagtitiwala 
at pagtulong. Dahil sa inyo, mas marami tayong 
naaabot, mas marami tayong natutulungan.

Maraming salamat sa inyong lahat, Kapuso!
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There is strength in collaboration – ngayon, bukas at magpakailanman.

In a year that was notable for back-to-back disasters varying among 
typhoons, drought, volcanic eruptions, oil spills, and swine flu outbreaks, 
I can only say this: collaborations create the most value in difficult 
periods.  

As I looked back to 2024 and revisited the purpose and values of 
GMA Kapuso Foundation of which the bedrock principle is Service – 
prioritizing the well-being of others and contributing to the greater 
good.  Looking back at our purpose and values keeps us in line, and it 
can give way to a stronger platform for a more meaningful impact 
of our objectives.  

GMA KAPUSO FOUNDATION
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While the passing of time brought change, we 
also noticed that the challenges we used to 
face grew bigger, further exposing the most 
vulnerable in our country.  Be it in health, 
education and natural calamities, this is the 
present reality that no single organization can 
deal with alone.  

We received tremendous support from our co-
collaborators aka donors, partners, volunteers 
and supporters. (Please refer to pages 
76-87). With their participation, we have 
instilled more value to our mandate. 2024 
saw 436,871 individuals served, spanning 
across our pillar programs of Health, Values 
Formation, Education and Disaster Relief.  
Implemented through various projects under 
these programs, these achievements are a 
testament to the significance of collaboration, 
its principle, and the impact it gives, while 
collaboratively addressing challenges. 

Problem shared is problem halved.  
With this, we have become more agile and 
adaptable to the changing times, delivering 
aid faster and more efficiently, reaching out to 
more people needing help across the country 
in the spirit of charity.

In the coming year, we hope to have more 
organizations join us in this collaborative 
coalition to further empower our united 
advocacies in support of the people.  

We are grateful to all who have supported our 
projects, and most of all, to those who gave 
their trust to the GMA Kapuso Foundation.  

Your GMAKF will always be grounded in 
“Service”, the anchor on which our future 
initiatives will always be founded on.  

Mabuhay kayong lahat!
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It was a harrowing and hectic second semester of 2024, with the last 6 
months of the year seeing 9 consecutive strong weather disturbances test 
the ability of Filipinos to endure.

The operations of your GMA Kapuso Foundation were also tested by 
the never-before-experienced succession of storms that wreaked havoc 
in Luzon, Visayas and Mindanao. It was as if nature was deliberately 
sending strong winds and torrential rains our way, such that at some 
points in time, we ourselves as aid givers would ask: (1) Would there be 
enough donations and help to give? (2) Is there no end to this trial in 
sight? We saw in the eyes of typhoon and flood victims a terrible fatigue 
and resignation that we strove to lighten and change into hope.

GMA KAPUSO FOUNDATION
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By the grace of God, we all made it through 
this most difficult and calamitous year that 
was 2024. The storms delayed post-disaster 
infrastructure projects of GMAKF as the 
seemingly incessant rains caused landslides 
and rivers to swell, rendering transport of 
construction materials impossible. Nonetheless, 
GMAKF’s relief missions (Operation Bayanihan) 
continued throughout this challenging period, 
supported by donors, partners and sponsors 
who never lost faith in our shared advocacy, 
and in doing so, inspired us to do more 
SERBISYONG TOTOO for our beneficiaries. The 
situation reminded me of the biblical story 
of the prophet Elijah and the widow in the 
Book of Kings, Chapter 1. The story tells of the 
prophet’s encounter with a destitute woman 
during a time of famine. God orders Elijah to 
seek refuge with the widow, who is about to 
make a last meal for herself and her son. The 
widow, at Elijah’s urging, shares her meager 
food, and because of her generosity despite 
her dire circumstances, God miraculously 
provides for them, ensuring that their flour 
and oil never run out until the famine ended. 
Similarly, God made sure that somehow, 
Filipinos never “ran on empty”. The latter 
pages of this annual report give honor to top 
donors and service partners. Thank you so 

much for sharing your treasure and time so that 
those with nothing and those left with little, post-
calamities, always had something to sustain them 
until better days arrived. 

You are God sent. And you are our inspiration 
propelling us forward into facing the challenges 
of 2025. Your GMA Kapuso Foundation now 
utilizes more social media platforms, apart 
from traditional mass media (radio and TV) 
to involve and engage supporters. We take you 
on-site to our projects via our official Facebook, 
YouTube, Instagram (@gmakapusofoundation), 
TikTok (@kapusofoundation) and X (@gmakf) 
pages so you see as close to real time as signal 
permits – where we go, what we do and how 
you can further help. With fundraising comes 
great accountability. Your GMAKF, being the most 
trusted media foundation in the country, takes 
this responsibility seriously and gives regular 
reports on the progress of our aid projects and 
missions on various platforms. And this in 
turn gives you – our beloved donors, partners 
and sponsors – the choice of delivery of timely 
information in aid of charity at your chosen 
time – whichever time zone you may be in. Times 
are tough, natural and man-made disasters 
abound and can come consecutively as they did 
in 2024. But together, we will overcome and even 
thrive. God bless the Philippines and all Filipinos, 
everywhere in the world.
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Disasters pounded the country this year, yet the resilient Filipino spirit withstood 
these numerous calamities nationwide.

Consecutive devastating typhoons caused destruction. Typhoons Carina and 
Enteng drowned the National Capital Region and nearby provinces. Typhoon 
Kristine sank Quezon, Bicol, Batangas, Cagayan and Isabela in �ood waters. 
Typhoons Julian, Leon, Marce, Nika and Ofel walloped Cagayan, Isabela and 
Batanes. And �nally, the last typhoon of 2024 was also the strongest one 
experienced in the world last year - Typhoon Pepito devastated Camarines Norte, 
Camarines Sur, Catanduanes and Aurora.
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The shear line weather phenomenon �ooded Davao De Oro, Davao Oriental, 
Maguindanao and Maguindanao Del Sur.

In Negros Occidental, the eruption of Mt. Kanlaon a�ected the province year-round.
Furthermore, drought damaged the farmlands of Ilocos Norte, Benguet, Cagayan, 
Oriental Mindoro, Isabela, Maguindanao, Iloilo, Samar and Antique.

KF Served: 
318,086 individuals through its Disaster Relief program,

60,114 individuals through its Education program, 
50,402 individuals through its various Values Formation projects and,
8,269 individuals through its di�erent Health projects. 
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 JANUARY 6,413 Operation Bayanihan
6,000 individuals from Pantukan, 
Monkayo and Nabunturan in 
Davao de Oro a�ected by the 
shear line were given relief goods. 

Ngiting Kapuso 
113 indigent bene�ciaries in 
the National Capital Region and 
nearby provinces were given full 
and partial dentures at the CEU 
School of Dentistry and the GMA 
Network Center. 

FEBRUARY 239*

Kapuso Kalusugan Konsulta
228 patients of public hospitals in the NCR and various 
provinces were served, receiving maintenance medicine, 
laboratory services and O.R. supplies from Kapuso Foundation
partner pharmacies. 

Subject of Appeal Cases
11 individuals with rare and complicated diseases were 
provided operations, chemotherapy, check-ups, laboratory 
tests and referrals in Cagayan, Camarines Sur, Tarlac, Quezon, 
Antipolo, Sorsogon, Albay, Bulacan and the NCR.

Sagip Dugtong Buhay
5,952 blood bags (450 cc) were collected from blood donors 
through blood donation drives in partnership with the 
Philippine Red Cross, Ever Commonwealth, GMA Regional 
Stations, LTFRB, cadets of the Philippine Military Academy and 
soldiers of ARMOR (PAMBATO) Division, 1st Marine Brigade, 
Philippine Marine 
Corps and Training 
Command, Philippine 
Army.

Goiter Awareness Week
300 individuals from General Santos and 
Koronadal in Cotabato province were given 
free check-ups, vitamins and laboratory 
tests to raise awareness on thyroid health 
to promote early detection, prevention and 
treatment of thyroid-related conditions.

*5,960 blood bags excluded in the February monthly total count.

YEAR AT A GLANCE & MONTHLY HEALTH PROJECTS
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MARCH 28,106
Operation Bayanihan          
13,304 individuals in Tarragona and Caraga, Davao Oriental 
a�ected by the shear line were given relief goods.

14,300 individuals in Enrile, Cagayan, Bulalacao, Oriental 
Mindoro and San Agustin, Isabela a�ected by the drought 
were given relief goods. 

Women’s Health Month 
502 women from Rizal, Laguna, Camarines Sur and Cebu 
were given free PAP smears, breast examinations and 
reproductive healthcare lectures. 

  APRIL 28,020

Operation Bayanihan          
26,000 individuals in Iloilo, Antique, Ilocos Norte, Oriental Mindoro and 
Benguet a�ected by drought were given relief goods. 

Kalusugan Karavan
2,020 individuals in Sta. Marcela, 
Apayao bene�ted from free 
medical services and consultations 
on pulmonology, otolaryngology 
(ENT), pediatrics, obstetrics, 
gynecology and ophthalmology.
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MAY 17,676

Operation Bayanihan          
12,450 individuals in Samar and Maguindanao 
a�ected by drought were given relief goods.

4,200 individuals in Lucena, Quezon a�ected 
by Typhoon Aghon were given relief goods. 

Hypertension Awareness Month
200 individuals in Bangar, La Union and San 
Enrique, Negros Occidental were given FBS, 
cholesterol, uric acid, urinalysis, ECG, HIV, STI, 
Hepatitis B, and lipid pro�le laboratory tests, 
medicine, food and bicycles for 3 people. 

Operation Bayanihan
12,500 Mt. Kanlaon volcanic eruption survivors in 
Negros Occidental were given relief goods.

Mother’s Day
512 women from Dumaguete, Negros 
Oriental, San Simon, Pampanga and 
Lucban, Quezon were given free PAP 
smears, breast examinations, reproductive 
health lectures and care packages. 

Kapuso School Development 
114 students bene�ted from the 
construction of 3 Kapuso-type classrooms 
at Dagadag Elementary School in 
Mankayan, Benguet.

Kapuso Ng Kalikasan
200 individuals bene�ted from the 
planting of pine trees at Dagadag 
Elementary School in Mankayan, Benguet.

JUNE 72,703

Prostate Cancer Awareness Month and Father’s Day
203 men from Bais City, 
Negros Oriental and Iligan 
City, Lanao del Norte were 
given free check-ups, ECG, 
Prostate Speci�c Antigen 
(PSA), DRE, FBS, lipid pro�le 
and urinalysis laboratory 
tests, medicine and food. 

Unang Hakbang Sa Kinabukasan 2024
60,000 incoming  Kindergarten and Grade 1 pupils 
from nationwide provinces of Abra, Palawan, 
Apayao, Nueva Vizcaya, Kalinga, Zambales, Ifugao, 
Benguet, Eastern Samar, Samar, Southern Leyte, 
Leyte, Siquijor, Guimaras, Antique, Lanao del Norte, 
Sarangani, Agusan del Sur, Tawi-Tawi, Davao de 
Oro, Davao Oriental, Surigao del Sur, Misamis 
Occidental, Maguindanao del Norte and Sulu were 
given Kapuso school bags with complete sets of 
school supplies.

YEAR AT A GLANCE & MONTHLY HEALTH PROJECTS
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JULY 39,841
Operation Bayanihan
6,000 individuals in Pagalungan, Maguindanao del Sur and Datu 
Piang, Maguindanao a�ected by the �ooding brought about by 
the shear line were given relief goods. 

33,746 individuals in Quezon City, Marikina, Malabon, Navotas, 
San Juan City and Rizal a�ected by the Habagat enhanced by 
Typhoon Carina were given relief goods.

National Disability Prevention and Rehabilitation Week
67 physically impaired individuals in Eastern Samar received new 
wheelchairs (adult and pediatric). 

28 bene�ciaries from Roxas, Oriental Mindoro received arm 
prostheses and wheelchairs from KF partners, LN4 Foundation 
and Naked Wolves Philippines. 

72,703

AUGUST 12,315
Operation Bayanihan
8,000 individuals a�ected by the MT Terranova oil spill in Bataan and Cavite 
were given relief goods.

2,400 individuals in Mansalay, Mindoro a�ected by the lockdown caused by 
an NPA encounter were given relief goods.

Sight Saving Month: Kapuso 20/20
231 individuals from the NCR and Biliran were given free reading and 
corrective eyeglasses and eye check-ups. 

Kalusugan Karavan
826 individuals in Bago City, Negros Occidental bene�ted from the free 
medical consultations and laboratory services including CBC, urinalysis, RBS, 
ECG, and breast screening, and were also given free haircuts and food.

858 individuals in Marilao, Bulacan bene�ted from free medical 
consultations, tooth extractions, eye check-ups and eyeglasses distribution.  
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SEPTEMBER 49,864
Operation Bayanihan
33,064 individuals a�ected by Typhoon Enteng in Rizal, Cavite, 
Camarines Sur, Samar, Bulacan and Valenzuela City were given 
relief goods. 

4,800 individuals a�ected by the African Swine Fever in Lobo, 
Batangas were given relief goods.

6,000 Mt. Kanlaon volcanic eruption survivors in Canlaon City 
and La Castellana, Negros Occidental were given relief goods.

6,000 individuals a�ected by Typhoon Ferdie in Roxas and 
Taytay, Palawan were given relief goods. 

Operation Bayanihan
44,066 �sherfolk a�ected by Typhoon Kristine in Quezon, 
Camarines Sur, Batangas, Albay, Cagayan, Albay and Isabela were 
given relief goods.

5,200 �sherfolk a�ected by Typhoon Enteng in Pililla, Rizal were 
given relief goods.

14,100 individuals a�ected by Typhoon Julian in Itbayat, Basco, Ivana, 
Mahatao, Uyagan and Sabtang, Batanes were given relief goods. 

Linis Lusog Kapuso ng Kabataan
539 public elementary students from Himamaylan City, Negros 
Occidental had tooth extractions, and also participated in hand 
washing and tooth brushing drills.

1,500 public elementary students from Bayambang, Pangasinan 
received hygiene kits, �uoride varnish application and tooth 
extractions; they also participated in hand washing and tooth 
brushing drills in line with the Global Hand Washing Week. 

OCTOBER 65,405YEAR AT A GLANCE & MONTHLY HEALTH PROJECTS
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NOVEMBER 50,087
Operation Bayanihan
30,500 individuals a�ected by Typhoons Marce and Nika in Aurora, 
Cagayan, Isabela and Batanes were given relief goods.

19,032 individuals a�ected by Typhoon Pepito in Camarines Norte, 
Camarines Sur, Rizal and Catanduanes were given relief goods.

Silong Kapuso
424 individuals a�ected by Typhoon Julian in the province of Batanes 
were given roo�ng sheets for their damaged houses.

Newborn Screening Caravan
131 newborn babies from Pililla, Rizal, Tayabas, Quezon and Lipa, 
Batangas were given free newborn screening tests in partnership 
with the Department of Health-CALABARZON, and gift packages from 
donors were also given.
with the Department of Health-CALABARZON, and gift packages from 
donors were also given.

DECEMBER 66,202
Give-A-Gift: Distributions of Noche Buena Packs
50,000 children from 312 public elementary schools in Luzon, Visayas and 
Mindanao received Give-A-Gift bags containing Noche Buena grocery packs 
and toys.  

16,000 Mt. Kanlaon volcanic eruption survivors in Bago City, La Carlota and 
La Castellana, Negros Occidental were given relief goods.

Give-A-Gift: Surgical Project
185 patients from Negros Occidental and 
Cebu underwent major and minor surgeries 
in partnership with the World Surgical 
Foundation, Philippines.

Kapuso Cancer Champions
17 kids a�icted with cancer received free 
chemotherapy medicine and blood bags in partnership with the Philippine 
Red Cross.
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Many thought it couldn’t happen until it did. 

9 consecutive typhoons battered the country with no let 
up. First in July, Typhoon Carina sent Metro Manila and 
nearby provinces to their knees, wading in cascading 
�ood waters. After a month’s respite, a worse typhoon: 
Enteng, more or less a�ected the same areas. In October, 
Typhoon Julian ravaged extreme Northern Luzon. And 
then, still in October, the worst �ooding in recent times 
in Bicolandia was brought by Tropical Cyclone Kristine. 
Still in October, and still extreme Northern Luzon as the 
most a�ected area, Typhoon Leon dumped lots of rain 
on Batanes and Cagayan. Unbelievably, November saw 
4 more consecutive typhoons: Marce, Nika, Ofel and 
Pepito, devastating Northern Luzon, Rizal and Bicol. 

The compounded e�ects of the storms left communities 
reeling with an estimated economic loss of over 20 
billion pesos, according to the National Disaster Risk 
Reduction and Management Council (NDRRMC), in late 
November and early December of 2024.

Operation Bayanihan:

2024’s 9 Consecutive 
Strong Storms

GMA KAPUSO FOUNDATION
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A total of 1,499 road sections and 262 bridges across Luzon were rendered impassable. 
GMA Kapuso Foundation had to use presidential choppers lent by President Marcos to 
reach cut o� barangays in Libon, Albay, impassable and unreachable for at least 5 days 
due to landslides. 

Over 316,358 houses were damaged, with Regions 1, 2, and the Cordillera Administrative 
Region (CAR) bearing signi�cant losses. The damage to infrastructure reached an 
estimated P13.7 billion, with P10.57 billion from Storms Kristine and Leon alone. Damage 
to agriculture amounted to over P7.47 billion. This included signi�cant destruction to 
irrigation systems, valued at P1.16 billion, leaving thousands of farmers grappling with 
uncertainty as vast tracts of farmland were inundated or destroyed. The human cost 
was also harrowing, with 174 fatalities, 148 injuries, and 25 individuals still missing as of 
December 2024.

Talisay, Batangas

Catanduanes

Albay

Camarines Sur

9th Infantry Division, Philippine Army
Pili, Camarines Sur
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Your GMA Kapuso Foundation 
responded to the worst disasters 
and distributed relief goods 
and aid to over 175 thousand 
individual bene�ciaries. 

Pililla, Rizal

Taytay, Rizal

Malabon City

San Juan City

Navotas City
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Baras, Rizal

Valenzuela City

Tanay, Rizal

Palawan

Antipolo, Rizal
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Batanes
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Malanday, Marikina

Cagayan

Batangas

Quezon Province 

Camarines Sur

Albay
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Malanday, Marikina

Isabela

Albay

Lucena

Camarines Sur
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Tumana, Marikina

Camarines Norte

Catanduanes
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Super Typhoon Julian brought in violent winds to Batanes and the northeastern 
Babuyan Islands, passing near Sabtang Island on September 30, 2024. Homes 
were destroyed which prompted GMAKF to provide roo�ng and construction 
materials to 25 partially damaged houses at Barangay Sumnanga in Sabtang 
Island which is largely inhabited by indigent locals. 

Under its Silong Kapuso Project, GMAKF gave lumber, corrugated roo�ng sheets, 
ridge rolls and nails which were shipped via a Philippine Navy ship through the 
O�ce of Civil Defense. Similar roo�ng material plus a donation of 10 cement 
bags per a�ected household were also given to 106 residents with totally 
damaged houses. These totally damaged homes are located and spread out 
among the six municipalities of Batanes: Basco, Itbayat, Ivana, Mahatao, Sabtang 
and Uyugan. 

Silong Kapuso Sa Batanes
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Typhoon Egay battered Benguet and nearby provinces in July 2023, destroying 
crops and schools. GMA Kapuso Foundation responded to the need of building 
a sturdy school for the children of vegetable and �ower farmers in Mankayan, 
Benguet whose livelihood got badly a�ected by Typhoon Egay.

On May 22, 2024, three Kapuso-type classrooms with three restrooms were built 
and inaugurated at Dagadag Elementary School, serving 114 Kindergarten to 
Grade 6 students who mostly belong to the Kankan-ey Indigenous People.

Now, this hardworking community has a typhoon-resilient school that protects 
the students and teachers from hazardous weather. 

BEFORE

AFTER

Construction of Dagadag Elementary 
School in Mankayan, Benguet
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GMAKF broke ground for its 9th Kapuso bridge, in Mansalay and Bulalacao, 
Oriental Mindoro on May 30, 2024. 

Over 1600 individuals from 7 barangays between the 2 municipalities were 
to bene�t from the Kapuso steel and concrete structure, mostly belonging 
to the Mangyan indigenous people.

BEFORE

AFTER

Kapuso Tulay Para Sa Kaunlaran Ng 
Mansalay at Bulalacao, Oriental Mindoro

GMA KAPUSO FOUNDATION
ANNUAL REPORT 202434

GMAKF AR2024_inside pages_Revised.indd   34 9/16/25   4:�� PM



A pivotal partner was the AFP Southern Luzon 
Command which tasked its brigade and battalion to 
secure the area and help ferry materials and supplies 
to the bridge site. 

Unfortunately, the weather took a turn for the worse 
in July and would not improve for the remainder of 
the year in Southern Luzon. 

Consequently, the bridge site which traverses a river 
became impassable as its gentle waters in summer 
became a raging force in the rainy season. 

Due to the consecutive storms of 2024, work on the 
bridge had to be postponed pending better weather 
in 2025. 

Special thanks to our sponsors whose support was 
integral to the eventual completion of the Kapuso 
Tulay Para Sa Kaunlaran ng Mansalay at Bulalacao, 
Oriental Mindoro: 

PPG Coating, Philippines – paint 
Eagle Cement Corporation – cement 
Equator Energy Corporation – solar lamps 
Starlite Ferries – cargo 
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Motivation drives children to go to school, and the provision of 
school supplies encourages these kids to pursue their studies.

The annual Unang Hakbang Sa Kinabukasan provides customized 
school bags with complete sets of school supplies to incoming 
Kindergarten and Grade 1 learners. From July to August, 60,000 
public elementary students from Luzon, Visayas and Mindanao 
received the said educational supplies.

Unang Hakbang Sa Kinabukasan 2024

Eastern Samar
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ABRA APAYAO BULACAN DAVAO ORIENTAL

EASTERN SAMAR IFUGAO KALINGA

LEYTE MAGUINDANAO DEL NORTE BENGUET

NUEVA VIZCAYA SARANGANI ZAMBALES
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The Celebrity Ukay-Ukay booths for the Noel Bazaar at Okada Manila, the 
World Trade Center in Pasay and at the Filinvest Tent in Alabang were once 
again �ooded with shoppers from November to December of 2024. 

Spearheaded by Cut Unlimited, Inc. led by CEO Mayose Gozon-Bautista 
and co-presented by GMA Network, the Noel Bazaar sold a variety of goods 
from diverse merchants to avid shoppers. Part of the proceeds funded GMA 
Kapuso Foundation’s Unang Hakbang Sa Kinabukasan project. 

Shop for a Cause: Celebrity Ukay-Ukay at 
the Noel Bazaar 2024
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GMA Kapuso Foundation’s Celebrity Ukay-Ukay booths 
at the Noel Bazaar sell pre-loved clothes and other 
donated personal items of Kapuso stars, GMA Integrated 
News and Public A�airs personalities, and Kapuso 
entertainment shows by the GMA Entertainment Group 
Visual Applications Unit (VAU). Live Celebrity Auctions 
hosted by Barangay LS 97.1 DJs also featured Kapuso 
celebrities who auctioned o� their branded and special 
items to fans. Proceeds of the Celebrity Ukay-Ukay and 
Celebrity Auction support GMA Kapuso Foundation’s 
educational and disaster relief projects. 

Noel Bazaar 2024 was attended by Noel Bazaar 
Ambassadors Sanya Lopez, Kylie Padilla, Kyline Alcantra 
and Shuvee Etrata. Performers were Jennylyn Mercado, 
Pokwang, Gazini Ganados, Rein Hillary, Cloud 7, Marco 
Masa, Ashley Sarmiento, Gaea Mischa, Radson Flores, 
Mitzi Josh, Lyra Micolob, Nadj Zablan, Muriel Lomadilla, 
Jennifer Maravilla, Keisha Serna and Zyren Dela Cruz.

We are grateful to our donors for turning over their 
pre-loved items to KF’s Celebrity Ukay-Ukay 2024: Mel 
Tiangco, Dingdong Dantes, Emil Sumangil, Kim Atienza, 
Arnold Clavio, Suzie Entrata-Abrera, Susan Enriquez, 
Mariz Umali, Pia Arcangel, Angel Guardian, Justin 
and Pablo of SB19, Gazini Ganados, Rein Hillary, Kuh 
Ledesma, Jennylyn Mercado, Pokwang, Cloud 7, Marco 
Masa, Ashley Sarmiento, Kylie Padilla, Kyline Alcantara, 
Christian Bautista, Nelson Canlas and Boy Abunda.
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Kapuso Kalusugan Karavan
GMAKF’s roving medical missions implemented 
in calamity-a�ected areas:

Sta. Marcela, Apayao
April 12, 2024
2,020 bene�ciaries
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Marilao, Bulacan
August 31, 2024
858 bene�ciaries

Bago City, Negros Occidental
August 2, 2024
826 bene�ciaries
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Kapuso Kalusugan Konsulta

Free medicine, laboratory services and O.R supplies were given to 228 indigent 
bene�ciaries referred by public hospitals in the National Capital Region and 
various provinces all throughout the year.

Dr. Gil Vicente, 
ENT Specialist

Dra. Grace Beltran, 
Dermatologist, Dermatologic 
& Aesthetic Surgeon 

Dr. Hector Santos, 
Plastic Surgeon
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Subject of Appeal Case
Special Feature: The Little Girl with 3 Arms

One of our SOA cases was Atheena Sevilla, 6 years old, and a talented young artist with a third arm 
growing on her back. The said arm is from her parasitic twin which never developed. The arm has a 
tiny hand, fully able to feel. Nails grow as they would on a normal hand, with extra sensitive �esh. 
Unfortunately, removing Atheena’s third arm was not a simple matter. An MRI scan revealed that 
Atheena’s extra arm was directly attached to her spinal cord and therefore, her brain. 

Atheena’s parents are father Rodolfo Sevilla, a 38 year-old construction worker and mother Mercy 
Corpin, a 28 year-old laundry woman. 

Before she was cleared for the delicate operation, Atheena �rst had to undergo a battery of tests 
and had to gain weight. She only weighed a little over 14 kilograms and needed to be at least 
18kg for her age. 

After several sessions of MRI scans, repetitive laboratory tests and a diet designed to make 
her gain weight, Atheena was finally cleared for surgery. Operating on Atheena was Kapuso 
volunteer pediatric surgeon and former president of the Pediatric Surgeons Association of 
the Philippines, Dr. Beda Espineda, and Dr. Jose Aguilar — both from our partner hospital 
Philippine Children’s Medical Center (PCMC ). Finally, on April 25, 2024, Atheena’s third arm 
was finally and successfully removed. 

Now, Atheena can lead a normal life, lie down �at on her back and wear regular clothes, thanks to 
the surgical expertise of our Kapuso surgeons, Doctors Espineda and Aguilar. To God be the glory 
for making this miracle possible! 
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The Christmas season ignites the spirit of giving which would 
hopefully live in our hearts throughout each year.

The yearly Give-A-Gift: Alay sa Batang Pinoy Christmas project 
shared Noche Buena gift packs with toys and special food items 
that are packed in customized reusable bags to 50,000 public 
elementary students nationwide.

CORRECTIONAL INSTITUTION FOR WOMEN - MANDALUYONG

Give-A-Gift: Alay sa Batang Pinoy 2024

CAGAYAN
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BATANGAS AGUSAN DEL SUR BATANES

BENGUET PILILLA, RIZAL

SAMAR CAMARINES SUR

CATANDUANES DAVAO ORIENTAL

Give-A-Gift: Alay sa Batang Pinoy 2024
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Perhaps there is no concrete answer to the question why children 
must su�er debilitating diseases. What we can only do is to give 
our best to alleviate their pain and be there for them and their 
families. 

GMA Kapuso Foundation’s Give-A-Gift: Kapuso Cancer Champions 
project helped 17 cancer-stricken children through the provision 
of chemotherapy treatment and blood bags for necessary 
transfusions in partnership with the Philippine Red Cross. 

We admire and support the loving parents for their sacri�ces and 
for putting the needs of their sick children above their own.

Kapuso Cancer Champions
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The conservation of nature is undeniably a must, especially with the dangerous and ever 
increasing threat of global weather �uctuations.  The Kapuso ng Kalikasan project helps protect 
the environment by spearheading the planting of native trees in disaster-stricken provinces 
where we have built Kapuso-type schools.

Super Typhoon Egay devastated the province of Benguet in 2023 and destroyed schools. A total 
of 200 individuals in the vegetable-growing community bene�ted from the planting of pine 
trees at Dagadag Elementary School in the municipality of Manakayan.

Hopefully, these pine trees will grow tall and strong, protecting generations of students. 

Kapuso ng Kalikasan
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True giving entails sacri�ce. The Sagip Dugtong Buhay bloodletting project 
challenges brave blood donors to go beyond their comfort zone for others 
who are in dire need of blood transfusion. 

The GMA Kapuso Foundation in partnership with the Philippine Red Cross 
collected a total of 5,952 blood bags in 2024 from various public organizations.

We are grateful to the following for mobilizing thousands of blood donors:

Ever Commonwealth, GMA Regional Stations, the Land Transportation 
Franchising and Regulatory Board, the Philippine Military Academy, and the 
Armed Forces of the Philippines (1st Marine Brigade, Philippine Marine Corps, 
Armor “Pambato” Division and the Training Command of the Philippine Army).

We honor all of you for saving lives! 

TRAINING COMMAND, PHILIPPINE ARMY (MARCH)

Sagip Dugtong Buhay

SAGIP DUGTONG BUHAY
BLOODLETTING DONORS

DATE OF 
IMPLEMENTATION

NO. OF BLOOD BAGS 
COLLECTED

CUBIC CENTIMETER OF 
BLOOD COLLECTED

VENUE

GMA Network employees February 9, 2024 847 381,150 cc GMA Regional Mall Partners 
(simultaneous)

Public and private citizens February 17, 2024 1,674 753,300 cc Ever Commonwealth Mall, 
Quezon City

Land Transportation Franchising and 
Regulatory Board (LTFRB)

February 23, 2024 71 31,950 cc Main Office, East Avenue, Quezon City

dƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ��ŽŵŵĂŶĚ,�WŚŝůŝƉƉŝŶĞ��ƌŵǇ March 8, 2024 231 103,950 cc TRACOM, Camp O’Donnell, 
Capas, Tarlac

Armor “Pambato” Division, Philippine Army June 4, 2024 135 60,750 cc Armor Clubhouse, Camp O’Donnell, 
Capas, Tarlac

Public and private citizens August 17, 2024 1,792 806,400 cc Ever Commonwealth Mall,
Quezon City

1st Marine Brigade, Philippine Marine Corps September 12, 2024 165 74,250 cc Camp Iranun, Barira, 
Maguindanao del Norte 

Philippine Military Academy (PMA) November 10, 2024 755 339,750 cc Yap Hall, PMA, Baguio City

dƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ��ŽŵŵĂŶĚ,�
WŚŝůŝƉƉŝŶĞ��ƌŵǇ

�ĞĐĞŵber ϴ, 2024 282 126,900 cc TRACOM, Camp O’Donnell, Capas, Tarlac 

GRAND TOTAL 5,952 2,678,400 cc
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ARMOR DIVISION, PHILIPPINE ARMY EVER COMMONWEALTH MALL (AUGUST) EVER COMMONWEALTH MALL (FEBRUARY)

LAND TRANSPORTATION FRANCHISING AND REGULATORY BOARD (EAST AVE.) PHILIPPINE MILITARY ACADEMY  1ST MARINE BRIGADE, PHILIPPINE MARINE CORPS GMA REGIONAL STATIONS

SAGIP DUGTONG BUHAY
BLOODLETTING DONORS

DATE OF 
IMPLEMENTATION

NO. OF BLOOD BAGS 
COLLECTED

CUBIC CENTIMETER OF 
BLOOD COLLECTED

VENUE

GMA Network employees February 9, 2024 847 381,150 cc GMA Regional Mall Partners 
(simultaneous)

Public and private citizens February 17, 2024 1,674 753,300 cc Ever Commonwealth Mall, 
Quezon City

Land Transportation Franchising and 
Regulatory Board (LTFRB)

February 23, 2024 71 31,950 cc Main Office, East Avenue, Quezon City

dƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ��ŽŵŵĂŶĚ,�WŚŝůŝƉƉŝŶĞ��ƌŵǇ March 8, 2024 231 103,950 cc TRACOM, Camp O’Donnell, 
Capas, Tarlac

Armor “Pambato” Division, Philippine Army June 4, 2024 135 60,750 cc Armor Clubhouse, Camp O’Donnell, 
Capas, Tarlac

Public and private citizens August 17, 2024 1,792 806,400 cc Ever Commonwealth Mall,
Quezon City

1st Marine Brigade, Philippine Marine Corps September 12, 2024 165 74,250 cc Camp Iranun, Barira, 
Maguindanao del Norte 

Philippine Military Academy (PMA) November 10, 2024 755 339,750 cc Yap Hall, PMA, Baguio City

dƌĂŝŶŝŶŐ��ŽŵŵĂŶĚ,�
WŚŝůŝƉƉŝŶĞ��ƌŵǇ

�ĞĐĞŵber ϴ, 2024 282 126,900 cc TRACOM, Camp O’Donnell, Capas, Tarlac 

GRAND TOTAL 5,952 2,678,400 cc

TRAINING COMMAND, PHILIPPINE ARMY (DECEMBER)

PHILIPPINE MILITARY ACADEMY 
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In a joint project of the GMA Kapuso Foundation and the World 
Surgical Foundation, Philippines, surgical assistance was given to 
185 patients with congenital defects from various municipalities in 
Negros Occidental. They underwent major and minor surgeries at 
the Valladolid District Hospital in Valladolid, Negros Occidental on 
December 10-13, 2024, noteworthy with the eruption of Mt. Kanlaon 
just a day before on December 9.

75 patients underwent major surgeries, and 110 patients 
underwent minor surgeries. The medical procedures included:  
hemorrhoidectomy, total thyroidectomy, open cholecystectomy, 
mesh hernioplasty, hernioplasty, excision of submandibular mass, 
lobectomy, parotidectomy, herniorrhaphy, herniotomy, laparoscopic 
cholecystectomy, excision of neck mass, repair of hypospadias, 
hydrocelectomy, hernia repair, incision biopsy, release of chordee, 
drainage of umbilical polyp, excision of breast mass, hernia repair, 
pull through, rectal biopsy, excision of giant adenoma, lipoma, scrotal 
exploration and cases of orchidopexy.

GMAKF provided anesthesia, sutures and post-operation medicine.

Give-A-Gift: Surgical Project

GMA KAPUSO FOUNDATION
ANNUAL REPORT 202450

GMAKF AR2024_inside pages_Revised.indd   50 9/16/25   4:�1 PM



Actual surgeries done by KF partner, the World 
Surgical Foundation led by its President 
Dr. Marcus Lester Suntay in Valladolid, 
Negros Occidental. (December 10-13, 2024)
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*SGVFS196800*

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of Trustees
GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc. (a nonstock, nonprofit
organization) (the Foundation), which comprise the statements of assets, liabilities and fund balance as at
December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the statements of receipts and expenses, statements of changes in fund
balance and statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Foundation as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, and its financial performance and its cash
flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards for Small and
Medium-sized Entities (PFRS for SMEs) Accounting Standard.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs).  Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report.  We are independent of the Foundation in accordance
with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with PFRS for SMEs Accounting Standard, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Foundation’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Foundation or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Foundation’s financial reporting
process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit.  We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Foundation’s internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Foundation’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion.  Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report.  However, future events or conditions may cause the Foundation to cease to continue
as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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GMA KAPUSO FOUNDATION, INC.
(A Nonstock, Nonprofit Organization)
STATEMENTS OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

December 31
2024 2023

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) P=228,712,823 P=241,837,361
Short-term investments (Note 5) 22,123,257 6,442,380
Receivables (Note 6) 1,733,382 3,033,681
Other current assets 125,955 141,131

Total Current Assets 252,695,417 251,454,553

Noncurrent Assets
Property and equipment (Note 7) 308,418 657,009
Other noncurrent assets (Note 8) 20,285,523 19,460,357

Total Noncurrent Assets 20,593,941 20,117,366
P=273,289,358 P=271,571,919

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and other current liabilities (Note 9) P=8,089,231 P=3,034,821
Due to related party (Note 16) 1,427,856 1,305,176

Total Current Liabilities 9,517,087 4,339,997

Noncurrent Liability
Pension liability (Note 15) 630,430 603,733

Total Liabilities 10,147,517 4,943,730

Fund Balance (Note 3)
Restricted 20,110,120 15,323,226
Unrestricted 243,031,721 251,304,963

Total Fund Balance 263,141,841 266,628,189
P=273,289,358 P=271,571,919

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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GMA KAPUSO FOUNDATION, INC.
(A Nonstock, Nonprofit Organization)
STATEMENTS OF RECEIPTS AND EXPENSES

Years Ended December 31
2024 2023

RESTRICTED
Receipts/revenues - Projects (Note 10) P=10,901,741 P=360,600
Program expenses - Projects cost (Note 12) 6,114,847 4,668,975
Excess (deficiency) of restricted receipts over expenses 4,786,894 (4,308,375)

UNRESTRICTED
Receipts/revenues:

Projects (Note 10) 24,039,064 19,487,767
Donations (Note 11) 52,895,896 46,480,755
Interest income (Notes 4, 5 and 8) 9,614,010 4,817,235
Foreign exchange gain - net 5,009,862 –

91,558,832 70,785,757
Program expenses:

Project cost (Note 12) 84,610,387 69,190,080
Salaries and wages (Note 12) 3,892,720 4,109,091
Donation expense (Note 12) 794,744 15,677,641

Administrative expenses:
Compensation and employee benefits (Note 14) 7,021,470 6,882,568
Repairs and maintenance 997,779 1,811,910
Transportation and travel 547,821 617,987
Depreciation (Note 7) 348,591 401,944
Office supplies 264,624 290,609
Communication 170,004 180,521
Entertainment, amusement and recreation 70,186 102,276
Taxes and licenses 34,672 17,972
Foreign exchange loss - net – 772,848
Others 1,079,076 733,649

99,832,074 100,789,096
Deficiency of unrestricted receipts over expenses (8,273,242) (30,003,339)

DEFICIENCY OF RECEIPTS OVER EXPENSES (P=3,486,348) (P=34,311,714)

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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GMA KAPUSO FOUNDATION, INC.
(A Nonstock, Nonprofit Organization)
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

Years Ended December 31
2024 2023

RESTRICTED
Balance at beginning of year P=15,323,226 P=19,631,601
Excess (deficiency) of restricted receipts over expenses 4,786,894 (4,308,375)
Balance at end of year (Note 3) 20,110,120 15,323,226

UNRESTRICTED
Balance at beginning of year 251,304,963 281,308,302
Deficiency of unrestricted receipts over expenses (8,273,242) (30,003,339)
Balance at end of year (Note 3) 243,031,721 251,304,963

P=263,141,841 P=266,628,189

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

GMA KAPUSO FOUNDATION
ANNUAL REPORT 202458

GMAKF AR2024_inside pages_Revised.indd   58 9/16/25   4:�1 PM



*SGVFS196800*

GMA KAPUSO FOUNDATION, INC.
(A Nonstock, Nonprofit Organization)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31
2024 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Deficiency of receipts over expenses (P=3,486,348) (P=34,311,714)
Adjustments for:

Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain) - net (5,009,862) 772,848
Interest income (Notes 4, 5 and 8) (9,614,010) (4,817,235)
Pension benefit, net of contributions (Note 15) 26,697 (43,633)
Depreciation (Note 7) 348,591 401,944

Deficiency of receipts over expenses before working capital changes (17,734,932) (37,997,790)
Decrease (increase) in:

Short-term investments (15,680,877) (1,222,317)
Receivables 999,416 (1,131,440)
Other current assets 15,176 8,649

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 5,054,410 (249,910)
Due to a related party 122,680 (733,205)

Net cash flows used by operations (27,224,127) (41,326,013)
Interest received 9,914,893 3,824,715
Net cash flows used by operating activities (17,309,234) (37,501,298)

CASH FLOW FROM AN INVESTING ACTIVITY
Increase in other noncurrent assets (Note 8) (825,166) (18,460,357)

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (18,134,400) (55,961,655)

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 5,009,862 (772,848)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF YEAR 241,837,361 298,571,864

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
(Note 4) P=228,712,823 P=241,837,361

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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GMA KAPUSO FOUNDATION, INC.
(A Nonstock, Nonprofit Organization)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) was incorporated in the Philippines and registered
with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on April 24, 1991 as a nonstock,
nonprofit organization under the laws of the Republic of the Philippines.  The primary activity of the
Foundation is to engage in philanthropic, humanitarian and charitable activities for public welfare.
The registered office address of the Foundation is GMA Network Center, EDSA corner Timog
Avenue, Brgy. South Triangle, Diliman, Quezon City.

As a nonstock, nonprofit organization, the Foundation is exempt from income tax under the
conditions set forth in Section 30 (E) of the National Internal Revenue Code (NIRC).

On February 28, 2024, the Philippine Council for NGO Certification (PCNC) renewed the
accreditation of the Foundation for five (5) years from February 28, 2024 to February 27, 2029.
Subsequently, on October 3, 2024, the BIR issued a Certificate of Registration (COR) to the
Foundation.  This certification acknowledges the Foundation's status as a duly accredited donee
institution in accordance with the provisions of Revenue Regulations (RR) No. 13-98 dated
December 8, 1998.  Accordingly, donations received by the Foundation shall entitle donors to the full
or limited deduction pursuant to Section 34 (H)(1) or (2) and exemption from donor’s tax pursuant to
Section 101 (A)(2) of the National Internal Revenue Code of 1997, as amended.  This certification is
valid until August 9, 2027.

On September 19, 2023, the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) renewed the Foundation’s Certificate
of Tax Exemption from income tax only on the revenues or receipts from projects and donations valid
for three (3) years from September 19, 2023 to September 18, 2026.

The accompanying financial statements of the Foundation were approved and authorized for issuance
by the Board of Trustees on March 31, 2025.

2. Basis of Preparation, Statement of Compliance and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.  The financial statements are
presented in Philippine Peso, which is the Foundation’s functional and presentation currency.
Amounts are rounded off to the nearest peso, except when otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards for Small and Medium-sized Entities (PFRS for SMEs) Accounting Standard.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The following is the summary of significant accounting policies applied in preparing the financial
statements:
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Current versus Noncurrent Classification
The Foundation presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on
current/noncurrent classification.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

 expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
 held primarily for the purpose of trading;
 expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or
 cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at

least twelve months after the reporting period.

A liability is classified as current when:

 it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
 it is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
 it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
 there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting period.

The Foundation classifies all other assets and liabilities as noncurrent.

Basic and Other Financial Instruments
The Foundation accounts for its financial instruments in accordance with Section 11, Basic Financial
Instruments, under PFRS for SMEs Accounting Standard.

Initial Recognition and Measurement. Basic and other financial assets and liabilities are recognized
when the Foundation becomes a party to the contracts.  Basic financial instruments are measured at
transaction price including transaction costs.  If the contract constitutes a financing arrangement, it is
measured at the present value of future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar
instrument, unless the assets and liabilities are classified as current and do not incorporate a finance
arrangement.  If interest is not at a market rate, the fair value would be future payments discounted at
a market rate of interest.  Other financial instruments are initially measured at fair value, which is
usually their transaction price, and exclude transaction costs.

Subsequent Recognition. For basic financial instruments, at the end of each reporting period:

 Debt instruments, such as an account, note, or loan receivables or payables, are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate;

 Commitments to receive a loan are measured at cost less impairment; and
 Investments in non-convertible preferred shares and non-puttable ordinary, and preference shares

that are publicly traded or their fair value can otherwise be reliably measured, are measured at fair
value through profit and loss if a public market exists, otherwise at cost less impairment.

All other financial instruments are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, except
for equity instruments (and related contracts that would result in delivery of such instruments) that are
not publicly traded and whose fair value cannot be reliably determined, which are measured at cost
less impairment.
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As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Foundation’s basic financial instruments consist of cash and
cash equivalents, short-term investments, receivables, accounts payable and other current liabilities
(excluding payable to government agencies) and due to a related party.  The Foundation has no other
financial instruments measured at fair value.

Determination of Fair Value. The standard makes use of a fair value hierarchy such as quoted prices
in an active market, prices in recent transactions for the identical assets (adjusted if necessary), and
use of a valuation technique (that reflects how the market would expect to price the asset and the
inputs reasonably represent market expectations).  Fair value, where there is no active market, is only
considered reliable if the variability in the range of fair values is not significant and the probabilities
of various estimates can be reasonably assessed.  Fair value of a liability cannot be below the amount
in a demand feature discounted to the reporting period.  For all other financial instruments not listed
in an active market, the fair value is determined by using appropriate valuation techniques.  Valuation
techniques include using arm’s length transaction for an identical asset between knowledgeable,
willing parties, if available, reference to current fair value of another asset that is substantially the
same as the asset being measured, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other
relevant valuation model.

Impairment.  At the end of each reporting period, an assessment is made as to whether there is
objective evidence of a possible impairment.  If there is objective evidence of impairment, the
Foundation shall recognize an impairment loss in the statement of receipts and expenses immediately.

All equity instruments regardless of significance and other financial assets that are individually
significant shall be assessed for impairment individually and all other financial assets shall be
assessed for impairment either individually or grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics.  The impairment loss of basic financial instruments at amortized cost is the difference
between carrying value and the revised cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The impairment loss of basic financial instruments at cost less impairment is the difference between
the carrying value and best estimate of the amount that would be received if the asset were sold at the
end of each reporting period.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized (such as an improvement in the
debtor’s credit rating), the Foundation shall reverse the previously recognized impairment loss either
directly or by adjusting an allowance account.  The Foundation shall recognize the amount of the
reversal in the statement of receipts and expenses immediately.

Other financial instruments carried at cost less impairment are impaired on the same basis as basic
financial instruments measured in the same manner.

Derecognition. The Foundation derecognizes a financial asset when:

 The contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or are settled;
 The Foundation transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership

of the financial asset; or
 The Foundation, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership, has

transferred control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell
the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party.
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The Foundation derecognizes financial liabilities when:

 it is extinguished, i.e., when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, is cancelled or
expires; or

 profit and loss in recognized between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished
or transferred to another party and the considerations paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks.  Cash in banks earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit
rate.  Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less and that are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.

Receivables
This account includes advances to suppliers, advances to officers and employees and interest
receivable.

Short-term Investments
Short-term investments include highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash with original maturities of more than three months but less than one year from dates
of acquisition and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Other Current Assets
Other current assets include medical insurance paid in advance and amortized over the term of the
contract.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price and other costs directly
attributable in bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditures incurred after the property and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, are normally charged as expense in the year such costs are incurred.  In situations
where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property and equipment beyond
its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as additional costs of
property and equipment.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method, net of any estimated residual value, over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Computer equipment 3 years
Communication equipment 3 years
Video equipment 5 years
Office and mechanical equipment 5 years
Transportation equipment 5 years
Office furniture and fixtures 5 years
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If there is an indication that there has been a significant change in depreciation method, useful life or
residual value of an asset, the depreciation of that asset is revised prospectively to reflect the new
expectations.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal.  Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is credited or charged to current operations in the year the asset is derecognized.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until these are no longer in use and no further
depreciation is charged to current operation.

Impairment of Property and Equipment
At each reporting period, property and equipment is reviewed to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.  If there is an indication of possible
impairment, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or group of related assets) is estimated and
compared with its carrying amount.  If estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is
reduced to its estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognized immediately in the
statement of receipts and expenses.

If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or group of related
assets) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not in excess of the amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset (or group of
related assets) in prior years.  A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in the
statement of receipts and expenses.

Other Noncurrent Assets
Other noncurrent assets pertain to investment in bonds and restricted cash in bank of the Foundation.

Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and other current liabilities are obligations on the basis of normal credit terms and
do not bear interest.  These are recognized in the period in which the related money, goods or services
are received or when a legally enforceable claim against the Foundation is established or when the
corresponding assets or expenses are recognized.

Fund Balance
Fund balance represents the cumulative balance of the excess of receipts over expenses.

Restricted Fund Balance.  Restricted fund balance results from contributions for which donor
imposed restrictions limit the Foundation’s use of an asset or its economic benefits.

Unrestricted Fund Balance.  Unrestricted fund balance generally results from revenue and other
income that are derived from the Foundation’s regular operations unless the receipts are limited by
donor-imposed restrictions.  The Foundation’s expenses are reported as decreases in unrestricted net
assets.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue comprises of donations, receipts for projects and interest income (collectively referred to as
“receipts”).  Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the Foundation and the amount can be reliably measured.
The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
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Projects and Donations.  Projects are amounts received to fund specific program of the Foundation.
Donations are general fund that is used to finance any program, including medical assistance of the
Foundation.  Projects and donations are recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the donation will flow to the Foundation, which in most cases is upon receipt of the
donation from the donors.  Donations in-kind are given to designated donees immediately.

Interest Income.  Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues, taking into account the effective yield
on the asset.

Expenses
Expenses are recognized when a decrease in economic benefit related to a decrease in an asset or an
increase of a liability has arisen that can be measured reliably.
Project costs and donation expenses are recognized on the basis of a direct association between the
cost incurred and revenue recognized by the Foundation.

Pension Costs
The Foundation has a funded, noncontributory retirement plan covering its permanent employees.
Pension costs are determined using the projected unit credit method.  The projected unit credit
method considers each period of service as giving rise to an additional unit of benefit entitlement and
measures each separately to build up the final obligation.  Actuarial gain or loss and past service costs
are recognized immediately in the statement of receipts and expenses.  Gains or losses on the
curtailment or settlement of pension benefits are recognized when the curtailment or settlement
occurs.

Foreign Currency-denominated Transactions
Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.  Transactions in foreign currencies are
recorded using the closing exchange rate at the dates of transactions.  Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are restated using the closing exchange rate at the reporting period.
All differences are taken to the statement of receipts and expenses.  Nonmonetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at
the dates of the initial transactions.

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Foundation has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Where the Foundation expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset but only when the receipt of the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Events after the Reporting Period
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Foundation’s financial position at
the reporting period (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements.  Post year-end events
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material.

3. Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Foundation’s financial statements in conformity with PFRS for SMEs
Accounting Standard requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and related notes.  Future events may occur
which may cause the assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to change.  The effects of any
change in estimates are reflected in the financial statements as these become reasonably determinable.
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Judgments, estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

Judgment
Management makes judgments in the process of applying the Foundation’s accounting policies.
Judgment that has the most significant effect on the reported amounts in the financial statements is
discussed below.

Determination of Restricted and Unrestricted Receipts and Expenses. The Foundation reports
receipts as restricted if these were received with donor stipulation that limits the use of the donation,
otherwise it will be classified as unrestricted.  Program expenses are classified as restricted following
the classification of the related receipts.  Should the receipts from restricted be inadequate to fund the
program expenses, then the Foundation would assess whether it needs to obtain funds from the
unrestricted receipts.

Restricted receipts/revenue and program expenses amounted to P=10,901,741 and P=6,114,847,
respectively in 2024 and P=360,600 and P=4,668,975, respectively in 2023 (see Notes 10 and 12).
Unrestricted receipts/revenues, and program and administrative expenses amounted to P=91,558,832
and P=99,832,074, respectively in 2024 and P=70,785,757 and P=100,789,096 respectively, in 2023
(see Notes, 10, 11 and 12). The accumulated restricted and unrestricted fund balance amounted to
P=20,110,120 and P=243,031,721, respectively as at December 31, 2024 and P=15,323,226 and
P=251,304,963, respectively as at December 31, 2023.

Estimates and Assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting period, that have a significant risk causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities, within the next financial year, are described below.

Assumptions on Pension Costs. The determination of the Foundation’s pension liability and pension
costs is dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such
amounts.  Those assumptions are described in Note 15 and include, among others, discount rate and
expected rate of salary increase.  Actual results that differ from the assumptions are accumulated and
recognized in the period in which it occurs.

Pension liability amounted to P=630,430 and P=603,733 as at December 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively (see Note 15).

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

2024 2023
Cash on hand P=28,305 P=30,000
Cash in banks 38,760,047 32,750,752
Cash equivalents 189,924,471 209,056,609

P=228,712,823 P=241,837,361
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Cash in banks and cash equivalents earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates.  Cash
equivalents are short-term placements made for varying periods of up to three months and earn
interest at the respective short-term placement rates.  Interest income earned from cash and cash
equivalents amounted to P=7,756,654 and P=4,510,093 in 2024 and 2023, respectively.

5. Short-term Investments

Short-term placements with terms of more than three months, presented under “Short-term
investments” account in the statements of assets, liabilities and fund balance amounted to
P=22,123,257 and P=6,442,380 as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Interest income earned from short-term investments amounted to P=746,503 and P=68,909 in 2024 and
2023, respectively.

6. Receivables

This account consists of:

2024 2023
Interest receivable P=780,298 P=1,081,181
Advances to suppliers 569,548 1,512,000
Advances to officers and employees 383,536 440,500

P=1,733,382 P=3,033,681

The terms and conditions of the above receivables are as follows:

 Interest receivables are normally collected within the next financial year.
 Advances to suppliers and advances to officers and employees are noninterest-bearing and are

normally collected and liquidated within 30-60 days.

7. Property and Equipment

The movements in property and equipment are as follows:

2024

Computer
Equipment

Communication
Equipment

Video
Equipment

Office and
Mechanical
Equipment

Transportation
Equipment

Office
Furniture

and Fixtures Total
Cost P=1,770,668 P=287,976 P=1,900,928 P=463,193 P=4,816,076 P=733,262 P=9,972,103
Accumulated Depreciation

Balance at beginning of year 1,370,696 287,976 1,900,928 463,193 4,567,125 725,176 9,315,094
Depreciation 282,334 – – – 63,562 2,695 348,591
Balance at end of year 1,653,030 287,976 1,900,928 463,193 4,630,687 727,871 9,663,685

Net book value P=117,638 P=– P=– P=– P=185,389 P=5,391 P=308,418

2023

Computer
Equipment

Communication
Equipment

Video
Equipment

Office and
Mechanical
Equipment

Transportation
Equipment

Office
Furniture

and Fixtures Total
Cost P=1,770,668 P=287,976 P=1,900,928 P=463,193 P=4,816,076 P=733,262 P=9,972,103
Accumulated Depreciation

Balance at beginning of year 1,088,362 284,998 1,900,928 463,193 4,453,188 722,481 8,913,150
Depreciation 282,334 2,978 - - 113,937 2,695 401,944
Balance at end of year 1,370,696 287,976 1,900,928 463,193 4,567,125 725,176 9,315,094

Net book value P=399,972 P=– P=– P=– P=248,951 P=8,086 P=657,009
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8. Other Noncurrent Assets

On October 10, 2023, the Foundation invested a total of USD333,400 funds to a five and a half (5.5)-
Year Retail Onshore US Dollar Bonds with a fixed interest of 5.75% per annum, issued by the
Republic of the Philippines through the Bureau of Treasury that will mature on April 11, 2029.  These
investment in bonds amounted to P=19,285,523 and P=18,460,357 as at December 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively.

Interest income earned from investment in bonds amounted to P=1,110,943 and P=238,233 in 2024 and
2023, respectively.

On June 9, 2015, the Foundation received a Provisional Asset Preservation Order (PAPO) against a
donation received from a donor with an ongoing legal proceeding.  The issued PAPO on the
Foundation’s bank account immediately forbids any transaction, withdrawal, deposit, transfer,
removal, conversion, concealment or other disposition of the cash amounting to P=1,000,000 in the
said account.  The said donation was deposited in a separate restricted bank account of the
Foundation.

9. Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities

This account consists of:

2024 2023
Accounts payable P=7,427,854 P=1,968,497
Payable to government agencies 263,057 697,035
Retention payable 239,915 202,941
Accrued expenses 158,405 166,348

P=8,089,231 P=3,034,821

The terms and conditions of the above liabilities are as follow:

 Accounts payable, retention payable and accrued expenses are noninterest-bearing and are
normally settled within the next financial year.  Accrued expenses pertain to administrative
expenses.

 Payable to government agencies are comprise of statutory contributions and other taxes which
remitted within 30 days after reporting period.

10. Projects

Receipts for various projects are as follows:

2024 2023
Restricted:

Kapuso School Rehabilitation/Development P=– P=302,000
Operation Bayanihan 10,901,741 58,600

10,901,741 360,600
Unrestricted:

Operation Bayanihan 14,831,353 9,825,527
Kapuso School Rehabilitation/Development 3,181,233 1,426,232

(Forward)
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2024 2023
Kalusugan Karavan P=1,729,340 P=568,605
Give a Gift 1,705,249 6,182,664
Bisig Bayan 1,615,256 46,284
Sagip Dugtong Buhay 424,800 831,789
Linis Lusog Kapusong Kabataan 371,203 100,548
Unang Hakbang sa Kinabukasan 180,630 475,967
Kapuso para sa Kalikasan – 30,151

24,039,064 19,487,767
P=34,940,805 P=19,848,367

Brief descriptions of the Foundation’s projects are as follows:

 Operation Bayanihan - a quick relief response to victims of natural and man-made disasters
anywhere in the country.

 Kapuso School Rehabilitation/Development - includes a school-based program and
reconstruction of demolished bridges.

School-based program aims to foster integral education to provide students of underserved public
schools, both primary and secondary, of the following:

 Decent and functional classrooms which are conducive for learning;
 Water distribution and sanitation facilities; and
 Environmental awareness through tree-planting around the school building.

Reconstruction of demolished bridges program aims to connect remote communities to trade and
learning centers.

 Kalusugan Karavan - a roving medical mission in far-flung areas where basic health services are
not accessible.

 Give a Gift (GAG) - the yearly distribution of customized Christmas packages to underprivileged
children from poor and far-flung areas.  To address specific needs of some of these children, the
GAG evolved into sub-projects such as the GAG: Feeding, GAG: Surgical, GAG: Cancer Kid
and GAG: Distribution.

 Bisig Bayan - special projects in line with the monthly themes of the Department of Health such
as Ngiting Kapuso, Serbisyong Alay Sa Kababaihan, Operation Tuli, Serbisyong Alay Sa
Kalalakihan, Wheelchair and Hearing Aid Giving, Kapuso 20/20, Echocardiogram Testing, and
Blood Sugar Testing.

 Sagip Dugtong Buhay - an annual bloodletting project which promotes volunteerism by donating
blood to help save lives and extend the lives of others.

 Linis Lusog Kapusong Kabataan – aims to promote and teach students, teachers and parents of
proper hand washing, oral hygiene, nail cutting and head lice treatment.

 Unang Hakbang sa Kinabukasan - yearly school opening project for incoming Grade 1 students
from poor and remote public elementary schools nationwide where they receive backpacks with
complete set of school materials.

 Kapuso para sa Kalikasan – aims to promote reforestation by tree planting to prevent further
erosion and landslides, particularly in areas affected by widespread flooding and deadly
landslides.
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11. Donations

Donations received are intended for the following purposes:

2024 2023

General fund P=52,868,317 P=30,605,625
Medical assistance 27,579 15,875,130

P=52,895,896 P=46,480,755

Donations received by the Foundation were from various corporations and individuals.

12. Program Expenses

Project cost for various projects are as follows:

2024 2023
Restricted:

Kapuso School Rehabilitation/Development P=3,148 P=4,482,421
Operations Bayanihan 6,111,699 186,554

6,114,847 4,668,975
Unrestricted:

Operation Bayanihan 28,125,167 11,187,021
Unang Hakbang sa Kinabukasan 19,997,585 21,022,602
Give a Gift 17,409,572 23,928,289
Kapuso School Rehabilitation/Development 12,817,468 10,649,808
Kalusugan Karavan 2,671,285 573,349
Bisig Bayan 2,254,763 466,942
Sagip Dugtong Buhay 833,943 1,152,990
Linis Lusog Kapusong Kabataan 500,604 178,928
Kapuso para sa Kalikasan - 30,151

84,610,387 69,190,080
P=90,725,234 P=73,859,055

Salaries and wages amounting to P=3,892,720 and P=4,109,091 in 2024 and 2023, respectively, pertain
to salaries of project-related employees.

Donation expense amounting to P=794,744 and P=15,677,641 in 2024 and 2023, respectively, were used
for expenses incurred in providing medical assistance to specific indigent patients identified by the
donors requiring extensive medical treatment.

13. Donations In-kind

In 2013, the Foundation started maintaining a summary of in-kind donations and its corresponding
value.  Amount of in-kind donations is based on the value disclosed by the donor.  In-kind donations
were valued at P=22,412,734 and P=28,387,513 in 2024 and 2023, respectively.
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14. Compensation and Employee Benefits

2024 2023
Salaries and wages P=6,510,727 P=6,285,687
Pension costs (benefit) (Note 15) 510,743 596,881

P=7,021,470 P=6,882,568

15. Pension Liability

The Foundation has a funded, non-contributory retirement plan covering its permanent employees.
In 2024 and 2023, the Foundation contributed to a retirement fund managed by a trustee bank.

Under the existing regulatory framework, Republic Act 7641 requires a provision for retirement pay
to qualified private sector employees in the absence of any retirement plan in the entity, provided
however that the employee’s retirement benefits under any collective bargaining and other
agreements shall not be less than those provided under the law.  The law does not require minimum
funding of the plan.

Under PFRS for SMEs Accounting Standard, the cost of defined benefit obligations, including those
mandated under Republic Act 7641 should be determined using an accrued benefit valuation method
or projected benefit valuation method to be determined by an independent actuary.

The following tables summarize the components of retirement costs recognized in the statements of
receipts and expenses and pension liability recognized in the statements of assets, liabilities and fund
balance as at and for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.

Pension costs recognized in statements of receipts and expenses are as follows:

2024 2023
Current service cost 323,734 P=320,497
Interest cost 268,303 268,738
Net actuarial loss (gain) 108,440 155,156
Expected return on plan assets (189,734) (147,510)

P=510,743 P=596,881

Details of net pension liability are as follows:

2024 2023
Present value of defined benefit obligations P=4,809,523 P=4,398,408
Fair value of plan assets (4,179,093) (3,794,675)
Pension liability P=630,430 P=603,733

The changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

2024 2023
Balance at beginning of year P=4,398,408 P=3,597,559
Current service cost 323,734 320,497
Interest cost 268,303 268,738
Net actuarial loss (gain) (180,922) 211,614
Balance at end of year P=4,809,523 P=4,398,408
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The changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:

2024 2023
Balance at beginning of year P=3,794,675 P=2,950,193
Contribution 484,046 640,514
Expected return on plan assets 189,734 147,510
Actuarial gain (289,362) 56,458
Balance at end of year P=4,179,093 P=3,794,675

The Foundation’s plan assets as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 consist of time deposits.

At each reporting period, the Foundation determines its contribution based on the performance of its
retirement fund.

The funds are managed and supervised by Trustee banks for the benefits of the plan members.
However, the general administration of the funds is vested in a Retirement Committee.

The latest actuarial valuation report obtained is at December 31, 2023.

The principal assumptions used in determining pension liability of the Foundation’s retirement plan
are as follows:

2024 2023
Discount rate 6.33% 6.10%
Expected rate of salary increase 1.01% 4.00%

16. Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly and indirectly, to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions.  This includes: (a) individuals owning, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, control or are controlled by, or under common control with the Foundation; (b)
associates; and (c) individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the
Foundation that gives them significant influence over the Foundation and close members of the
family of any such individual.  In considering each related party relationship, attention is directed to
the substance of the relationship, and not merely the legal form.

The Foundation, in the normal course of business, has transactions with related parties.  The table
below summarizes the amount of transactions entered into with related parties and the outstanding
balances as at December 31.

Related Party Category Year
Amount of

Transactions

Outstanding
Receivables

(Payables) Terms and Conditions
GMA Network, Inc. (GMA) Due to a related party 2024 (122,680) (P=1,427,856) On demand; noninterest-

bearing; unsecured2023 P=733,205 (1,305,176)
Donations receipts 2024 2,755,345 –

2023 1,740,139 –

Trustees Donations receipts 2024 15,950 –
2023 259,080 –
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Due to a related party pertains to the expenses initially paid by GMA on behalf of the Foundation.

Donation receipts pertains to donations received from related parties which form part of their general
fund that is used to finance any program, including medical assistance of the Foundation.

17. Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 15-2010

The Foundation reported and/or paid the following types of taxes in 2024:

a. Taxes and Licenses

Mayor’s permit and city taxes P=15,172
Issuance of certificate of donation 13,000
Barangay certificate renewal 4,500
Other business taxes 2,000

P=34,672

b. Withholding Taxes

Details of total remittances and balance of withholding taxes as at December 31, 2024 are as
follows:

Accrued Paid Total
Expanded withholding taxes P=97,568 P=550,356 P=647,924
Withholding taxes on

compensation and benefits 10,923 142,210 153,133

c. Tax Assessments and Cases

As at December 31, 2024, the Foundation has no final tax assessments and cases pending before
the BIR.  Likewise, the Foundation has no other pending tax cases outside the administration of
the BIR as at December 31, 2024.
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PROJECTS UNITADMINISTRATION UNIT

MEDIA PRODUCTION SUPPORT UNITMARKETING AND PROJECTS SUPPORT UNIT

KAPUSO SCHOOL DEVELOPMENT UNIT

ADMINISTRATION UNIT
Sheldon Cesar L. Perdigon Senior Finance Sta�
Ria S. Herida Junior Finance Sta�
Sheilana Rosary N. Ward Senior Admin Sta�
Joanna G. Logronio Senior Admin Sta�
Philomel A. Oroceo Warehouse Sta�
Rainiere C. Reyes Warehouse Sta�

PROJECTS UNIT
Ma. Cristina O. Betonio Senior Projects Sta�
Ma. Rose Ann L. Cordero Senior Projects Sta�
Maria Cristina G. Dungca Senior Projects Sta�
Maricel A. Tarrayo Senior Projects Sta�
Aron Paul P. Calma Junior Projects Sta�
John Christoper G. Ermino Junior Projects Sta�
Royce Ann D. Octavio Junior Projects Sta�
Amabelle D. Rusiana Junior Projects Sta�

MARKETING AND PROJECTS SUPPORT UNIT 
Loida Tracy G. Cruz Programs Development 
                                                     & Support Assistant Manager  
Angela A. Festejos Marketing Sta�
Hannah Sophia H. Leriorato Marketing Sta� 

MEDIA PRODUCTION SUPPORT UNIT 
Leonila O. Defuntorum Media Production 

Support Supervisor
Danilo A. Fausto Senior MPS Sta�
Marienel N. Fuertes Senior MPS Sta�
Martin N. Morales Social Media Sta�
Calista Allyson B. Geronimo Segment Producer for 24 Oras
Bettina Mirelle L. Tan Segment Producer for 24 Oras 

KAPUSO SCHOOL DEVELOPMENT UNIT
Engr. Baltazar Babas Engineering Consultant
Engr. Edgar D. Eniego Engineering Consultant
Engr. Arnel V. Zantua Supervising Engineer
Honesto M. Reyes Jr. Logistics On-Site
Fiderly S. Ventura Logistics In-Charge
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1st ROW: Joanna G. Logronio, Amabelle D. Rusiana, Rikki E. Catibog, Carmela C. Tiangco, Maricel A. Tarrayo, Angela A. Festejos
2nd ROW: Hannah Sophia H. Leriorato,  Leonila O. Defuntorum, Marienel N. Fuertes, Ma. Cristina O. Betonio

3rd ROW:  Philomel A. Oroceo, Calista Allyson B. Geronimo, Bettina Mirelle L. Tan, Arnel V. Zantua, Martin N. Morales, Ma. Rose Ann L. Cordero, 
Danilo A. Fausto 4th ROW:  John Christoper G. Ermino, Sheilana Rosary N. Ward, Loida Tracy G. Cruz, Engr. Baltazar Babas, Engr. Edgar D. Eniego, 

Rainiere C. Reyes, Fiderly S. Ventura, Maria Cristina G. Dungca, Aron Paul P. Calma, Royce Ann D. Octavio, Ria S. Herida
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TOP DONORS

MUNDIPHARMA
ARMED FORCES OF THE PHILIPPINESCUT UNLIMITED, INC.

KANEPACKAGE PHILIPPINES, INC.

PHILIPPINE SPAN ASIA CARRIER CORPORATION

EVER BILENA COSMETICS, INC.

GLOBE TELECOM

Mundipharma distributes nasal spray bottles to indigent Filipinos 
nationwide through GMA Kapuso Foundation.

L-R: Ms. Guadalupe Buno, GA Assistant Manager, Kanepackage 
Philippine, Inc., Ms. Rikki Escudero – Catibog, EVP and COO, GMAKF, and 
Ms. Evangeline Ortillo, VP, Kanepackage Philippine, Inc. Kanepackage 
Philippines gives aid to disaster stricken Filipinos through GMA Kapuso 
Foundation’s Operation Bayanihan.

Globe Rewards subscribers share their points to support the projects of 
the GMA Kapuso Foundation.

Ever Bilena Cosmetics Inc.’s cosmetic kits gave joy to GMA Kapuso Foundation’s 
partners, volunteers and bene�ciaries nationwide.

L-R: Mr. Martin Morales, Marketing Specialist, GMAKF, Ms. Rikki O. 
Escudero-Catibog, GMAKF EVP-COO, Mr. Jordan Go, President and 
COO,PSACC and Mr. Arnold Go, Sales and Marketing Head, PSACC
Philippine Span Asia Carrier Corporation provides valuable 
shipping services to GMA Kapuso Foundation. 

Ideal Vision Center provides eyeglasses and free consultations to the bene�ciaries 
of GMA Kapuso Foundation’s Kalusugan Karavan medical mission.

Our valiant troops of the 2nd Infantry Division, Philippine Army, shared their meal 
allowances with underprivileged Filipinos through GMA Kapuso Foundation. 

L-R: Tracy Cruz, GMAKF Programs Development Assistant Manager , Anne 
Tiongco,  Philippine Airlines Foundation  VP and Pinky Mag-iba Balagtas, 
Philippine Airlines Foundation Head. Philippine Airlines Foundation partners 
with GMA Kapuso Foundation through the provision of airline tickets for the 
implementation of projects nationwide.

L-R: Ms. Aprille C. Robles, Business Development Manager, GMAKF 
EVP- COO Ms. Rikki O. Escudero-Catibog together with Cut Unlimited 
president Ms. Mayose Gozon-Bautista, Ms.Mel Tiangco,GMAKF Founder/
Ambassador and Cut Unlimited business development o�cer Ms. 
Justine G. Bautista. Cut Unlimited Inc., through Noel Bazaar, supports 
GMA Kapuso Foundation’s projects in education, disaster relief, health, 
and values formation.

L-R: Ms. Dolly Eloriaga, Operations Manager Ever Dept. Store,Tessbomb, 
Papadudut, General Romeo S. Brawner Jr., AFP Chief of Sta�, Ms. Rikki Escudero-
Catibog, EVP & COO of GMA Kapuso Foundation, Gov. Ernesto Isla, Chairman, 
Philippines Red Cross,QC, and Dr. Gwendolyn Pang, Philippine Red Cross, 
Secretary General. The Armed Forces of the Philippines donated part of their meal 
allowances to GMA Kapuso Foundation for Filipinos a�ected by Typhoon Carina.

IDEAL VISION CENTER

THE 2ND INFANTRY DIVISION OF THE PHILIPPINE ARMY

PHILIPPINE AIRLINES FOUNDATION
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Bingoplus Foundation, Inc.
ICCT Colleges
LPT Marketing Company, Inc.
The House of Representative Employees
Nestle Philippines, Inc.
Software Cellular Network Limited
Seacoast Vacation Rentals
FLG Management and Development Corporation
Ravenal D. Santos Jr.
Apex Mining Co., Inc.
Fair Shipping Corporation
IC Memorial Service
Philippine Association of Service Exporters, Inc. (PASEI)
PCPP Foundation, Inc.
Philippine Canadian Charitable Foundation (PCCF)
PRL SpeedUp, Inc.

Quadco Recycling Enterprises
White Marketing Development Corporation
Readycon Trading and Construction Corporation
ComCo Southeast Asia, Inc.
Anti-Money Laundering Council Secretariat
Inter-Services Multipurpose Cooperative
Kyline Alcantara
Renato Jobaluyas
Global Comfort  Group Corporation
TMS Consultancy Solutions, Inc.
Advanced Information Solutions
New Triumph General Merchandising Corporation

TOP MONETARY DONORS OF 2024

Armed Forces of the Philippines
GMA Network, Inc.
Cut Unlimited, Inc.
2nd Infantry Division Philippine Army
Teresita Cuyco Rambaoa
Kanepackage Philippine, Inc.
Eagle Cement Corporation
Lourdes Ortiga
Bancnet, Inc.
Cemex Philippines Foundation, Inc. 
Great Harvest Enterprises, Inc.
HC Consumer Finance Philippines, Inc.
Adrian Crisanto Calimbas
Phil. Military Academy Alumni Association
Vicente Sotto Memorial Medical Center
Palladium Homemaker’s Club
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Intermed Marketing Phils., Inc.
S.L. Agritech
Dunkin’
Union Galvasteel
CDO Foodsphere, Inc.
Lim O Chu Foundation
Global Catering Corporation
Heintz Infant Prime Source, Inc.
Otsuka-Solar Phils., Inc.
Davie’s Paints Philippines, Inc.
Unilever Philippines
Manila Water Foundation
Shinhan Bank - Manila
Generika Drugstore
XALMEDS
Universal Robina-AIG
Equator Energy Corporation
World Class Concepts Corporation
Del Monte Philippines
KALOSph
RHEA Generics/PHILUSA
Intercity Ricemill Association
Del Monte Foundation
TD&CO

Procter & Gamble Philippines
Coca-Cola Philippines
Taste of Joy
Green Cross Incorporated
LO-AR Pharmaceutical Co., Inc.
Super Globe, Inc.
ChemLab 81 Cosmetics
Dyna Drugs
The Ruby Pantry
Julie’s Bakeshop
My 1st Dental Shop
SO-EN Garments Corporation
New Marketlink Pharmaceutical Corporation
Marikina Food Corporation
Mariwasa Siam Ceramics
Figaro Group
Fruitas Holdings, Inc.
Ambical International Corporation
Heads VoluMed
BotiCARD Pharmacy
Uni-Care Hygienic Products, Inc.
Melawares Philippines
Jollibee Group Foundation

Wellpoint Medical Clinic and Diagnostic Center
Lacasandile Clinic and Diagnostic Center
Ace Hub Medical Diagnostic Laboratory
Meridian Shipping and Container Carrier, Inc.
Seaborne Shipping Lines, Inc.
MQ Diagnostic Center
Wellmade Manufacturing Corporation
EyeSite Mandaluyong
Vibelle Marketing Corporation
Singapore Diagnostics
Aeon Fantasy Group Philippines, Inc. /KIDZOOONA        
Peri-Peri Charcoal Chicken & Sauce Bar
Sta. Clara Shipping Corporation
Department of Health-CALABARZON

Starlite Ferries, Inc.
Paladin Hotel
Hotel Tugos
Lazarian Hotel
North Park Noodles
Unilab
Frankie’s Bu�alo Wings
Scorched Smokehouse
Universal Robina Corporation
Transfer It!
LaSersita Casitas
Angkong Noodle House
David’s Salon Academy

TOP MATERIAL DONORS OF 2024

Mundipharma
Kanepackage Philippine, Inc.
Ever Bilena Cosmetics, Inc.
International Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
Maris Pure Corp.
Pascual Laboraties, Inc.
Union Cement
Eagles Cement Corporation
Ronald McDonald House Charities of the Philippines
Wilcon Depot, Inc.
Kleenfant 
Century Paci�c Food, Inc.
Gardenia Bakeries Philippines, Inc.
Monde Nissin 
Clearbridge Medical Philippines
Hanabishi 
Regicon Healthcare, Inc.
Haleon Philippines
Lotus Tools Philippines
PPG Coatings (Philippines), Inc.
McDonald’s PH
Bell Kenz Pharma Foundation, Inc.
American Standard

TOP SERVICE DONORS OF 2024

Philippine Span Asia Carrier Corporation
Ideal Vision
Philippine Airlines Foundation
Medi Linx Laboratory, Inc.
Solid Shipping Lines Corporation
Asian Eye Institute
Cebu Paci�c Air
Diagnostic Care and & Laboratory Services - DiagCare 
Bicol Medical Center
Eurotel
Moreta Shipping Lines, Inc.
Singapore Diagnostics
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SCHOOLS/UNIVERSITIES

Far Eastern University - Manila
Asian Institute of Maritime Studies
Our Lady of Lourdes School of Novaliches
FEU Institute of Technology
Far Eastern University - Diliman
New Era High School Seniors League
Ramon Magsaysay High School
Gardner College

Philippine Women’s University – Jose Abad Santos Memorial School (JASMS)
ICCT Colleges
ICCT High School Students 
Makati High School Batch ‘83 Alumni Association
Culiat High School
Pedro E. Diaz High School
AIESEC – University of Sto. Tomas
Centro Escolar University-School of Dentistry – Manila

COMPANIES

GMA G.I.V.E.S.
GMA Sparkle
Citi Philippines
JPMorgan Chase & Co.
Manila GDC Business Intelligence Team – Willis Towers Watson
PPG Coatings Philippines, Inc.
McDonald’s

GATE Distribution Enterprise, Inc.
Western Union Philippines
Citi Manila Controllers Team
First Oceanic Property Management
Liquigaz Philippines Corporation
Maxeon Solar Technologies
SCG Marketing Philippines, Inc. 

GOVERNMENT AGENCIES & EMBASSIES

Embassy of Israel - Manila
Bureau of Fire Protection - NCR
Philippine Statistics Authority - NCR PSO II
Bureau of Jail Management and Penology
73rd Marine Battalion, 7th Marine Brigade Reserve
Batasan Police Station 6
Holy Spirit Police Station 14

Co Ban Kiat Hardware
Holiday Inn Manila Galleria
Philippine Span Asia Carrier Corporation
Crowne Plaza Manila Galleria
AAI Charity Foundation, Inc.
Northern Trust Philippines

Land Bank of the Philippines - Cash Operations Support Department, Head O�ce
NCR Command - Armed Forces of the Philippines
Civil Relations Service - Armed Forces of the Philippines
Civil Military Operations Group - Philippine Navy
Coast Guard Civil Relations Service - Philippine Coast Guard (CGCRS-PCG)
1504th Ready Reserve Infantry Brigade, RESCOM, PA
Philippine Air Force - Civil Military Operations Group

TOP VOLUNTEER ORGANIZATIONS OF 2024
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National Solidarity for The Better Nation (NSBN)
Brgy. 58 #AAlabka Team
Rampa Para Kay Maria
The Church of Jesus Christ of Latter Day Saints - Young Women Organization 

of Pasig Stake
Heart Warriors of the Philippines, Inc. 
Philippine National Charity and Rescue Group - Valenzuela Chapter
Philippine National Charity and Rescue Group - Quezon City Chapter
Philippine National Charity and Rescue Group - Malabon Chapter
Philippine National Charity and Rescue Group - National Chapter
Philippine National Charity and Rescue Group - Taguig Chapter
Matatag Eagles Club
KALASAG
Militibus Riders Club (MRC) Batasan Chapter
Patrol Police Force Multiplier, Inc. 
Tracker Force Multipliers Group, Inc.
Philippine Association of Private School Dentists, Inc. (PAPSD) 

ORGANIZATIONS

Pasig 1st Relief Society & Young Women Organization
The Project 8 Initiative
Community Operation For Public Safety Quick Response Network
Bagong Buhay Movement, Inc.
Police Hotline Movement, Inc.
Tagapagtaguyod Tagapayo Eagles Club
Namalu-Hoa Community Crime Watch
Federation of Citizen Crime Watch - Special Task Force
Eagles Response Team
Quezon City Sandigan Eagles Club
Morong Rizal Philippines Stake - The Church of Jesus Christ 

of Latter Day Saints
Honda Click Enthusiast Club
Bayaning Pilipino na Aktibong Tumulong, 

Barangay Peacekeeping Action Team - BPAT - BRG
Global Maharlika Filipino New Society
Police Hotline Movement, Inc. (PHMI)
Bayanihan ng Kababaihan ng Bacoor City, Cavite
Confederate Sentinels of God, Inc.
Philippine National Charity and Rescue Group (Taguig, National and Malabon Chapter)
Movement for Building a Better Philippines
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SOUTHERN LUZON COMMAND, AFP

2nd Infantry Division, Philippine Army
9th Infantry Division, Philippine Army
902nd Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army
903rd Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army
31st Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
49th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
11th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
91st Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
87th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
202nd Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army
203rd Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army
102nd Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
1st Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
91st Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
87th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
74th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
83rd Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
62nd Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
63rd Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
51st Engineer Brigade, Philippine Army
46th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
4th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
514th Engineer Construction Battalion, Philippine Army
5th Civil-Military Operation Battalion, Philippine Army
9th Civil-Military Operation Battalion, Philippine Army

Civil Relations Service, Armed Forces of the Philippines (CRSAFP)
AFP Engineer Brigades and Battalions
O�ce of the Chief of Sta� - General Headquarters, Armed Forces of the Philippines 
O�ce of the Assistant Chief of Sta� for Civil Military Operations, G7
250th Presidential Airlift Wing
Philippine Army
Philippine Military Academy (PMA)
Philippine Marine Corps 
Training Command, Philippine Army
Army Artillery Regiment, Philippine Army
Civil-Military Operations Regiment, Philippine Army
AFP Reserve Command 
National Capital Region Command, Armed Forces of the Philippines

NORTHERN LUZON COMMAND, AFP

7th Infantry Division, Philippine Army 
5th Infantry Division, Philippine Army
502nd Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army
503rd Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army
54th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
50th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
69th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
17th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
98th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
91st Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
103rd Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
548th Engineer Construction Battalion

AFP PARTNERS 2024
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VISAYAS COMMAND, AFP

3rd Infantry Division, Philippine Army
8th Infantry Division, Philippine Army
301st Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army
302 Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army
801st Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army
802nd Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army
803rd Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army
61st Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
62 Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
87th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
43rd Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
46th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
47th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
63rd Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
74th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
11th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
82nd Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
11th Infantry Battalion Philippine Army 
3rd Civil Relations Group, CRSAFP

EASTERN MINDANAO COMMAND, AFP

4th Infantry Division, Philippine Army
10th Infantry Division, Philippine Army
701st Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army
1001st Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army
1002nd Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army
73rd Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
67th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
11th Regional Community Defense Center, 

Reserve Command, Philippine Army
1102nd Community Defense Center, 

Reserve Command, Philippine Army
1103rd Community Defense Center, 

Reserve Command, Philippine Army
1104th Community Defense Center, 

Reserve Command, Philippine Army
1105th Community Defense Center, 

Reserve Command, Philippine Army

WESTERN MINDANAO COMMAND, AFP

1st Infantry Division, Philippine Army
6th Infantry Division, Philippine Army 
11th Infantry Division, Philippine Army
101st Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army
1101st Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army
1102nd Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army
1103rd Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army
2nd Mechanized Infantry Brigade, Philippine Army
1st Special Forces Battalion, Philippine Army
4th Special Forces Battalion, Philippine Army
6th Special Forces Battalion, Philippine Army
4th Mechanized Battalion, Philippine Army
5th Mechanized Battalion, Philippine Army
72nd Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
48 Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
60th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
25th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
67th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
39th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
26th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
73rd Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
100th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
106th Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
21st Infantry Battalion, Philippine Army
15th CMO Battalion, CMOR, Philippine Army
1st CMO Battalion, CMOR, Philippine Army
4th Civil Relations Group, CRSAFP
Joint Task Force Zamboanga
Task Force Gensan
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PHILIPPINE AIR FORCE
PAF CMOG
Tactical Operations Wing Western Mindanao
Tactical Operations Group Sulu – Tawi-Tawi

PHILIPPINE NAVY
PN Headquarters
PN Civil-Military Operations Group
PN Naval Air Wing

PHILIPPINE MARINE CORPS
PMC Headquarters
1st Marine Brigade, PMC
2nd Marine Brigade, PMC
3rd Marine Brigade, PMC
Marine Battalion Landing Team - 1
Marine Battalion Landing Team - 2
Marine Battalion Landing Team - 3
Marine Battalion Landing Team - 4
Marine Battalion Landing Team - 5
Marine Battalion Landing Team - 7
Marine Battalion Landing Team - 12

PHILIPPINE COAST GUARD

PCG Headquarters
Coast Guard District South Western Mindanao
Coast Guard Education, Training and Doctrine Command
Coast Guard Civil Relations Service

PHILIPPINE NATIONAL POLICE

PNP Headquarters
PNP National Capital Region
Quezon City Police District
Southern Police District
Eastern Police District
Northern Police District
Police Regional O�ce 5
Apayao Provincial Police O�ce
Benguet Provincial Police O�ce
Municipal Police Station of Calanasan
Municipal Police Station of Luna
Municipal Police Station of Putdol
Municipal Police Station of Kabugao
Municipal Police Station of Conner
Municipal Police Station of La Trinidad
Mountain Province Police Mobile Force Company 

BUREAU OF FIRE PROTECTION

BFP Headquarters
BFP National Capital Region

BUREAU OF JAIL MANAGEMENT AND PENOLOGY

BJMP Headquarters
BJMP National Capital Region
BJMP – Danao City Jail Female Dormitory
BJMP – Talisay City Jail Female Dormitory
BJMP – Lapu-Lapu City Jail Female Dormitory
BJMP – Mandaue City Jail Female Dormitory
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DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION DIVISIONS

Samar DepEd
Mindoro Oriental DepEd
Benguet DepEd
Apayao DepEd
Mt. Province DepEd
Cagayan Valley DepEd
Isabela DepEd
Abra DepEd
Agusan Del Sur DepEd
Surigao Del Sur DepEd
Maguindanao Dep Ed
Negros Oriental DepEd
Davao Oriental DepEd
Davao De Oro DepEd
Eastern Samar DepEd
Antique DepEd
Lanao Del Norte DepEd
Surigao Del Sur DepEd
Agusan Del Sur DepEd
Agusan Del Norte DepEd

Quezon DepEd
Palawan DepEd
Nueva Vizcaya DepEd
Kalinga DepEd
Zambales DepEd
Leyte DepEd
Siquijor DepEd
Antique DepEd
Misamis Occidental DepEd
Camarines Sur DepEd
Oriental Mindoro DepEd
Aurora DepEd
Talisay City Cebu DepEd

PARTNER DOCTORS

Dr. Grace Beltran, Dermatologist, Dermatologic 
and Aesthetic Surgeon

Dr. Beda Espineda, Pediatric Surgeon
Dra. Paz Espineda, Pediatrician
Dr. Gil Vicente, ENT Specialist
Dr. Hector Santos, Plastic Surgeon
Dr. Lester Suntay, Pediatric Surgeon
Dra. Tonton Pascual, Ophthalmologist Corneal 

and External Disease Specialist
Dr. Teo�lo San Luis Jr., Endocrinologist
Dr. Victor Jonathan Benitez, Cardiologist
Dr. Pamela Pomer-Oandasan, Cardiologist
Dr. Genaro M. Meriño, MHO, Dasol, Pangasinan
Dr. Marysia Frances Urgel, GP
Dra. Joselyn Eusebio, Development Pediatrician
Dra. Joselyn Agonoy, Pediatrician
Dr. Matthew Geronimo, Opthalmologist
Dr. Emil Santos, Dentist
Dr. Cristy Querido, Optometrist
Dra. Joann Joven, Faculty Dentist, CEU School of Dentistry
Dra. Natividad Machica, President, Philippine Association 

of Private School Dentists (PAPSD)
Dra. Yolanda Pasol, Philippine Association of Private School 

Dentists (PAPSD)
Dra. Mary Ann Celebre, Philippine Association of Private   

School Dentists (PAPSD)

BUREAU OF FIRE PROTECTION

BFP Headquarters
BFP National Capital Region

BUREAU OF JAIL MANAGEMENT AND PENOLOGY

BJMP Headquarters
BJMP National Capital Region
BJMP – Danao City Jail Female Dormitory
BJMP – Talisay City Jail Female Dormitory
BJMP – Lapu-Lapu City Jail Female Dormitory
BJMP – Mandaue City Jail Female Dormitory
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The GMA Kapuso Foundation (GMAKF) Office receives monetary and material 
donations from Monday to Friday, 9:00am until 5:00pm.

For monetary donations, the Foundation accepts cash or check
which can be personally delivered to the GMAKF Office or 
deposited in its bank accounts. An official receipt is issued for 
donors who bring their cash donation to the GMAKF Office.
For bank deposits, the donor is requested to fax or e-mail a bank
transaction slip indicating intended recipient (if any) and
contact details for sending of official receipt.

Donations from the U.S., Europe and other countries can be 
wire-transferred to the GMA Kapuso Foundation accounts
indicating the “swift code” of the Philippine banks in the 
next page. The donor is requested to fax or e-mail a bank
transaction slip indicating the intended recipient (if any) and 
contact details for the sending of official receipts.

GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.
2nd Floor GMA Kapuso Center
GMA Network Drive cor. Samar Street
Diliman, Quezon City 1103
Philippines

Registration No.: DSWD-SB-R-000034-2021 
License No.: DSWD-SB-L-00053-2024
Accreditation No.: DSWD-SB-A-00153-2024
Solicitation Permit No.: DSWD SB-SP-00053-2024
Email: gmaf@gmanetwork.com
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Year At a Glance and Monthly Health Projects 14

DISASTER RELIEF PROJECTS

Cover Story I 2024’s Nine Consecutive Strong Storms 22
and GMAKF’s Operation Bayanihan Response 

Silong Kapuso Sa Batanes 30

EDUCATION PROJECTS 

Kapuso School Development in Aid of Farmers: 32
Dagadag Elementary School in Mankayan, Benguet

Kapuso Tulay Para Sa Kaunlaran ng 34
Mansalay at Bulalacao, Oriental Mindoro

Unang Hakbang Sa Kinabuksan 2024 36
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Kapuso Kalusugan Karavan 40  
Kapuso Kalusugan Konsulta 42  
       Subjects of Appeal Cases 
       Special Feature: The Little Girl with 3 Arms 43

VALUES FORMATION PROJECTS 

Give-A-Gift: Alay sa Batang Pinoy 2024 44
Kapuso Cancer Champions 46
Kapuso ng Kalikasan 47
Sagip Dugtong Buhay 2024 48
Surgical Outreach in Negros Occidental Amidst the 2024 50
     Eruption of Kanlaon Volcano 
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GMA Kapuso Foundation Sta� 74
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How to Donate to GMA Kapuso Foundation 84
Locally
Internationally
Online

METROPOLITAN BANK & TRUST COMPANY (METROBANK)

Peso Savings
Account Name : GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.
Account Numbers : 098-3-098-51034-7

Dollar Savings
Account Name : GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.
Account Number : 098-2-098-00244-2
Swift Code : MBTC PH MM

BANCO DE ORO (BDO)

Peso Savings
Account Name : GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.
Account Number : 00-469-0232-116
      : 00-469-0022-189

Dollar Savings
Account Number : GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.
Account Number : 10-469-0072135
Swift Code : BNORPHMM

LAND BANK OF THE PHILIPPINES

Peso Savings
Account Name : GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.
Account Numbers : 4811-0135-90

: 4781-0138-33

Dollar Savings
Account Name : GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.
Account Numbers:             : 4814-0105-33

: 4784-0106-22
Swift Code : TLBPPHMMXXX

PHILIPPINE NATIONAL BANK (PNB)

Peso Savings
Account Name : GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.
Account Number            : 1263-1000-8797

Dollar Savings
Account Name : GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.
Account Number : 1263-6000-8804
Swift Code : PNBMPHMM

UNIONBANK OF THE PHILIPPINES

Peso Savings
Account Name : GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.
Account Number : 000-4-000-226-79
Swift Code  : UBPHPHMM

Dollar Savings
Account Number : GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.
Account Number : 130-4-000-051-55
Swift Code : UBPHPHMM  

Service fees are waived in the following banks for all over the counter donations to the GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.

Donations are also accepted free of service charge at all branches of CEBUANA LHUILLIER
in the Philippines.

Credit card donations may also be done online but applicable service fees will be charged.

GMAKF also accepts material donations such as rice, canned goods, noodles, food items, 
medicines, hygiene supplies, new clothes and new footwear.

The Foundation only accepts material donations (ex. canned goods, food items and medicine) 
that are expiring beyond 6 months from date of acceptance. A material receipt form is issued 
to the donor upon delivery of material donation.

For material donations from abroad, door-to-door delivery is preferred . Please indicate the 
address and name of donor on the box. A material receiving form will be issued through 
mail or e-mail.

Thank you very much!

BANK OF COMMERCE

Peso Savings
Account Name : GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.
Account Number : 051-20-015869-9
Swift Code : PABIPHMM

Dollar Savings
Account Name : GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.
Account Number : 051-21-00358-38
Swift Code : PABIPHMM

You may also donate through any of our partners below:

All published images of minors were taken with consent.
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